
Camberwell Community Council
Wednesday 13 February 2019

6.30 pm
Theatre Peckham, 221 Havil Street, Camberwell, SE5 7SD

Membership

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE (Chair)
Councillor Jason Ochere (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John OBE
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Kieron Williams
Councillor Ian Wingfield

 

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact: Tim Murtagh on 020 7525 7187 or email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk  

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 5 February 2019

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Camberwell Community Council
Wednesday 13 February 2019

6.30 pm
Theatre Peckham, 221 Havil Street, Camberwell, SE5 7SD

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

2. APOLOGIES

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda.

5. MINUTES 1 - 3

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20 
March 2018.

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)

The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received at this 
meeting.
 
This must relate to a subject matter on this agenda only.
 
Deputation requests are also considered at the community council forum 
meeting which will be subject to approval.



Item No. Title Page No.

7. CLEANER GREENER SAFER 2019-20: CAPITAL FUNDING 
ALLOCATION

4 - 12

To approve the allocation of funds for the 2019-20 Cleaner Greener 
Safer capital programme in the Camberwell Community Council area 
from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1 of the report.

8. CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT 2019-2020

13 - 20

To approve the allocation of funds for the 2019-20 Community Council 
Highways Capital Investment programmes in Camberwell Community 
Council area from the list of proposals set out in Appendices 1 and 2 of 
the report.

9. ALLOCATION OF NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND 2019-20 21 - 30

To allocate a total of £81,529 of the Neighbourhoods Fund 2019-20 from 
the list of applications outlined in Appendix 1 of the report. 

Date:  5 February 2019

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

  “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution.”



1

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 20 March 2018

Camberwell Community Council
Minutes of the Camberwell Community Council held on Tuesday 20 March 2018 at 
7.00 pm at Theatre Peckham, 221 Havil Street, Camberwell, London SE5 7SD 

PRESENT: Councillor Kieron Williams (Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess (Vice-chair)
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John OBE
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Mark Williams

OFFICER 
SUPPORT:

Grace Semakula, Community Councils Officer
Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 

The chair welcomed councillors, residents and officers to the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dora Dixon-Fyle, Octavia Lamb and 
Ian Wingfield.

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

There were none.

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 

There were none.

5. MINUTES 

1
Agenda Item 5



2

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 20 March 2018

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2018 be agreed as a correct 
record of that meeting.

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY) 

There were none.

7. CLEANER GREENER SAFER - REALLOCATION 

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Councillors considered the information contained in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the following reallocations of funds for the cleaner greener safer (CGS) capital 
programme in the Camberwell Community Council area be approved: 

Additional funding for existing projects:

Widening the path to Dog Kennel Hill Wood                   £7,000
Vale End footway improvements                                     £2,200
Tayside Court grow project                                              £2,000
Reallocation to a new project of the 2018-19 CGS capital programme:

Champion Hill Estate lighting improvements                 £22,000

8. NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND 2018-19 

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Councillors considered the information contained in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the following allocations to projects under the Neighbourhoods Fund 2018-19 be 
approved: 

Brunswick Park ward
  
Sunday Spot                                                                    £5,000
Capoeira Angola Community                                           £1,800
Communities Reducing Social Isolation                           £2,564
Theatre Works                                                                 £5,200
Southwark Street Pastors                                                £1,176
Friends of Brunswick Park Summer Fete                        £1,565
Scrufts, Friends of Brunswick Park dog show                    £200
Holistic Health Days                                                         £4,490

2



3

Camberwell Community Council - Tuesday 20 March 2018

Sceaux Gardens community cycle hub                            £5,000
Holiday Activity Club                                                        £4,630
Film Night at Brunswick Park                                              £500
Five to Nine                                                                      £1,494
D’Eynsford TMO Garages project                                    £4,081
Safer Camberwell Youth Project                                      £1,300
Camberwell Festival Fair 2018                                        £1,000

Camberwell Green ward                                           

Grosvenor Estate Summer Street Party                             £200
The Welcome Singers                                                      £3,160
Southwark Explorers’ Club                                               £1,100
Summer Munch 2018                                                       £5,010
Free to Act (F2A)                                                             £5,000
Crawford Active – dance & table tennis                           £4,950
Poets Corner TRA – children and adults fitness              £1,860
Southwark Pensioners – health and wellbeing club         £2,020
Camberwell Fair 2018                                                      £1,000
Seniors Get Active with Golden Oldies                            £4,400
Safer Camberwell Youth Project                                      £1,300

South Camberwell ward                                            

St Faith’s Community & Youth Association                      £4,000
Bags of Taste Southwark                                                 £1,500
Mother Goose Nursery community events                       £4,000
Youth Ambassadors Project                                            £3,000
Mind and Body – weekly relaxation class                        £1,000
Get to know your neighbours community fair                   £3,000
Friends of Dog Kennel Hill Woods, light up the woods       £671
Southwark Pensioners Centre – Xmas party                   £1,500
London Wildlife Trust potted history                                 £2,500
Dog Kennel Hill adventure playground cooking               £3,000
Dulwich Festival wildlife mural                                         £1,500
Dog Kennel Hill adventure playground binding our community 
one stitch at a time                                                           £3,000
Safer Camberwell Youth Project                                      £1,300

Meeting ended at 7.45pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

3



Item No. 
7.

Classification:
Open

Date:
13 February 2019

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community 
Council

Report title: Cleaner Greener Safer 2019-20: Capital Funding 
Allocation

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Camberwell Green, Champion Hill, St. Giles 

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATION 

1. To approve the allocation of funds for the 2019-20 Cleaner Greener Safer 
capital programme in the Camberwell Community Council area from the list of 
applications set out in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. The council’s Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) capital programme has been 
running since 2003.

  
3. In the first sixteen years of the CGS programme, £36,033,000 has been 

allocated to community councils leading to 3,072 projects being approved. 

4. In the Camberwell Community Council area, £5,172,754 has been allocated to 
422 projects, 355 of which have been completed to date.

5. Examples of the types of projects that have been funded include:

 Parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree planting and wildlife areas
 Children’s playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and cycle tracks
 Lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and tackling ‘grot spots’
 Grants to local groups to self-deliver projects.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

6. There is £238,730 available for the 2019-20 CGS capital programme for new 
projects in the Camberwell Community Council area.

7. Unallocated funding from previous years’ programmes will also be reallocated 
subject to approval in a separate report.

8. Eligible proposals must bring about a permanent improvement and make an 
area cleaner, greener or safer. 

9. Proposals with revenue costs, including salaries, costs for events, festivals, 
workshops or other one-off events are not eligible for capital funding. CCTV 
proposals and internal improvements to housing property and works on 
schools where there is no access to the general public are also not eligible. 

4
Agenda Item 7



Works on private property are not eligible unless there is a long-term 
guarantee of public access or a demonstrable public benefit. 

10. The application form invited expressions of interest for the applicants to deliver 
projects themselves. A due diligence exercise to ensure that this is both 
practical and realistic has been undertaken as part of the feasibility process. In 
such cases, the council would give the funding allocation to the applicant in the 
form of a capital grant, with appropriate conditions attached.

Policy implications

11. The Cleaner Green Safer programme is fully aligned with the council’s policies 
around sustainability, regeneration and community engagement.

Community impact statement

12. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils 
take decisions on local matters including environmental improvements and 
community safety, as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and 
strategies that affect the area.

13. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse 
local communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The Cleaner Greener 
Safer programme is an important tool in achieving community participation.

14. In fulfilling the above objectives of community councils to bring together and 
involve Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the 
council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct;

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not share it;

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic and 
those that do not share it.

15. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need to:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic;

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic;

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic participate 
in public life or any other activity in which they are under- represented.

17. Ideas for CGS projects come from the local community, the majority via a 
simple project nomination form available in electronic and paper format.

5



Resource implications

18. The funding for the CGS capital programme from 2011 to 2021 was approved 
by the cabinet and is part of the council's overall capital programme as detailed 
in the Capital Programme 2011-2021 report dated 21 June 2011.

19. The allocation of funding per ward for the CGS capital programme was 
approved by the cabinet member for transport environment and recycling as 
detailed in the launch of Cleaner Greener Safer Capital Programme 2015-16 
report dated 6 August 2014.

20. The funding for the 2019-20 CGS capital programme was approved by the 
cabinet member for environment, transport management and air quality as 
detailed in allocation of funds to wards via Cleaner Greener Safer and 
Devolved Highways programmes report dated 20 December 2018.

21. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital costs 
of the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to organisations, the 
award amount announced at community council includes professional fees. 
The community council award notifications to grant recipients details the grant 
amount only, excluding these fees.

22. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding.  
Projects that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to 
community council and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. 
Revenue costs not covered by maintenance or the contractual liability period 
will fall upon the asset owner. The department will be notified of the likely costs 
before the schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the 
scheme.

23. After the defects and liability period, or three-year maintenance period in the 
case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, 
for example housing, parks, highways, or in some cases external asset 
owners. Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the highways division 
as a result of approving the proposed allocation. 

24. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.

25. Value for money will be ensured when the contract is procured by following the 
council’s contract standing orders.

Consultation 

26. All Cleaner Greener Safer projects require consultation with stakeholders, 
including the project applicant, local residents, tenants and residents 
associations and local community groups where appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

27. The Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) gives the Leader the power to 

6



delegate any executive function to whoever lawfully can undertake the 
function. The allocation of the CGS capital fund is an executive function.

28. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act 
and executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader. The terms of 
the delegation are set out in part 3H of the council’s constitution.

29. This report recommends that that community council approve the allocation of 
funds to the individual projects specified at Appendix 1.  Paragraph 14, Part 3H 
of the constitution enables community councils to approve “the allocation of 
funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of a local nature, 
using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”.

30. Community councils further have powers under paragraph 16, Part 3H of the 
Constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes.

31. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to 
the council’s equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The 
report author has demonstrated how those duties need to be considered in the 
body of the report at paragraphs 12 to 17 in the community impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance (CAP18/051) 

32. This report seeks the approval of the Camberwell Community Council for the 
allocation of funds (£238,730) for the 2019-20 Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) 
programme in the Camberwell Community Council area from the list of 
applications set out in Appendix 1.  

33. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource implications 
in the report that the proposed allocations will be contained within the council’s 
capital programme.

34. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 
recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

7



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Cabinet Report: Capital Programme 
2011–2021 – 21 June 2011

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Link (please copy and paste into your browser) : 
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Progra
mme%202011-2021.pdf

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 2011

 Environment and 
Leisure / Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Link (please copy and paste into your browser) :
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%
20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf

Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer 
Capital Programme 2015/16 - August 
2014 

 Environment and 
Leisure / Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Link:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798

IDM report – 20 December 2018
Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Transport Management and Air 
Quality

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Craig Dove
020 7525 0955

Link:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50018979&Opt=0

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer Capital 

programme 2019-20: Applications

8

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50018979&Opt=0


AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Dale Foden, Head of Highways (Acting)
Report Author Craig Dove, Senior Project Manager

Version Final
Dated 17 January 2019

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included

Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 21 January 2019

9



Camberwell Community Council

Cleaner Greener Safer CGS programme 2019-20: Applications

Reference Proposal Name Ward Programme

200211 Roof Installation for Community Hall North Bermondsey CGS

200213 Safer Kinburn Street Rotherhithe CGS

1087948 Hanging baskets from lamp post Old Kent Road North CGS

200202 Quietway 1 Safety Concerns South Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1089699 Violet Alice Tritton Memorial London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1089776 External lockable bike sheds Old Kent Road North CGS

1090276 Manor Estate cleaner, greener, healthier gardens regeneration South Bermondsey CGS

1090301 Hambley House secure bike storage South Bermondsey CGS

1090522 Silverlock SHU Oasis Garden Rotherhithe CGS

1093123 Albion Street Information Board Rotherhithe CGS or Highways

1093152 Christopher Jones Square information board Rotherhithe CGS

1093253 Hanging baskets in Mayflower 2020 focus area Rotherhithe CGS

1093796 Reprint updated Rotherhithe Map Rotherhithe CGS

1093806 Cast iron Black Plaques for three historic buildings Rotherhithe CGS

1093837 Map display & information board---Kings Stairs Gardens North Bermondsey CGS

1093862

Metropolitan Water Trough Information Board and maintenance of 

its planting. Rotherhithe CGS

200206 Rock Grove Way Gardening Club (Sheltered CGS Unit) South Bermondsey CGS

1094070

Repaint lampposts and bollards in Rotherhithe's Mayflower 2020 

focus area Rotherhithe CGS

1095389 Arnold Estate Bike Storage London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1095596 Purbrook Estate Growing Project London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1095742 The Goodwin Close Grounds Improvement Scheme South Bermondsey CGS

1096373 Southwark park estate Additional bike lockers North Bermondsey CGS

1096380

Nurturing Nature - developing the playground at Tower Bridge 

Primary School. London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1097058 Cycle Hanger for Adams Gardens Estate in Rotherhithe Rotherhithe CGS

1098175 Blick House lighting Rotherhithe CGS

1099210 Planting and greening Harold Estate London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1099527 Leather Market Gardens Playpark Revamp London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1099853 Enhancing our Bowls Club Rotherhithe CGS

1100152 A fresh Look at Bluegrove North Bermondsey CGS

1100519 Leaflet to support "Rotherhithe---history, art & the Mayflower walk" Rotherhithe CGS

1100728 Swale & Rain garden for Tupman House North Bermondsey CGS

1100912 Southwark park estate security gates North Bermondsey CGS

1100953 Southwark park estate balcony flowers North Bermondsey CGS

1108417

Bermondsey and Rotherhithe Community Council Hanging 

Baskets North Bermondsey CGS

1103894 Conran Building Bin Storage North Bermondsey CGS

1105338 Refuse disposal improvement - Acorn Walk Surrey Docks CGS

1105590 Safer alleyways Surrey Docks CGS

1105814 Bermondsey bee-friendly hedges North Bermondsey CGS

1106129 Installation of The Cornerstone sculpture London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1107233 Jarman House hanging baskets Rotherhithe CGS

1106253 Better use of Public Space in Bermondsey St London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1106953 Kids playground North Bermondsey CGS

1108395 Setchell Meeting Area South Bermondsey CGS

1109154 Continuation of planting North Bermondsey CGS

1108690 Bike rings!!! London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1108886 Tanner Street Park - Creation of an Eastern pedestrian entrance North Bermondsey CGS

1109530 Bicycle Hangers South Bermondsey CGS

1109541

Zoll AED Plus Defibrillator Unit Fully Automatic and AED Training 

Course for Volunteers South Bermondsey CGS

1110473 Safer path into St Mary's Church Yard Park and Time & Talents Rotherhithe CGS

1110796 Kissing gates Rotherhithe CGS

1110806 Raised flower Bed Rotherhithe CGS

1111234 Making the Old Kent Road, cleaner, greener and safer for all. Old Kent Road North CGS

1111250 Traffic Calming on Astley Cooper and Mawbey Estates. Old Kent Road North CGS

1111400 Road safety on the Longfield Estate South Bermondsey CGS

1111718 Lucey  Way Resurfacing - Phase 3 South Bermondsey CGS

1111723 Lucey Way Fly-tipping Reduction South Bermondsey CGS

1111731 Lucey Way Lighting Improvements - Phase 2 South Bermondsey CGS

APPENDIX 1 10



Reference Proposal Name Ward Programme

1111742 Lucey Way Playground  Update South Bermondsey CGS

1112052 Green roofs on pram-sheds at Manor House Estate South Bermondsey CGS

1113083 Cyclehoop Covered Bicycle Storage Webster Road North Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1114177 Bermondsey Street Dropped Curbs London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1113841

Improvement of the planting in the raised flower beds on the 

Cherry Garden Estate. North Bermondsey CGS

1113958 Replanting previously green areas in Bermondsey North Bermondsey CGS

1114117

Reinstatement of the Tommy Steele Statue---stage 1---3D scan of 

Maquette Rotherhithe CGS

1114174 Grange Walk Safer Crossing London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1114179 Bermondsey Forest School North Bermondsey CGS

1114184 Toddle Bike Checkout at Ellen Brown Community Center South Bermondsey Property

1114224 Bonding Yard Walk, Part 2 Surrey Docks CGS

1114328 imagination station Old Kent Road North CGS

1114426

New Cycle Stores. Improvements to ex-Pram stores and change 

to secure cycle lockers/units for resident sonly to rent.  This is a 

third application in three years! CGS don't want to repair this 

asset. North Bermondsey CGS

1084264 Safer Tooley London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1114774 Accessible access (dropped kerb) in Riverview Heights North Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1114875 Bike parking London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1114895 Bike road safety around Southwark Park Rotherhithe CGS or Highways

1115336 Rejuvenation of the downside fisher park London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1116100 Replanting and Refurbishment of Thames Path Troughs Rotherhithe CGS or Highways

1116143 Rotherhithe Road Tunnel Information Board Rotherhithe CGS

1116895 Aeration cascade at Lavender Pond Surrey Docks CGS

1116923 Sweden Gate pavement levelling Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1116950 Community Garden at 59-75 Adams Gardens Estate Rotherhithe CGS

1117096 Riverside - Soft Play New equipment Surrey Docks CGS

1117413 Snowsfields SuDS London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1117433 Lewes House SuDS London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1117722 Grass wickets (cricket table) in Southwark Park  Feasibility Study Rotherhithe CGS

1117848 Planting to stop antisocial behavior Rotherhithe CGS

1117898 Globe Fountain Sculpture Surrey Docks CGS

1117925 Keetons Estate Hanging Baskets & Replanting Gardens North Bermondsey CGS

1117991 Biodiversity on CGS estates Old Kent Road North CGS

1118022

Planting up devolved CGS or Highways funded tree beds at 

Rotherhithe Roundabout Rotherhithe CGS or Highways

200222 Growing Our Future South Bermondsey CGS

1119357 Painting the Blue South Bermondsey CGS

1118172 Harris Academy Bermondsey Green Corner South Bermondsey CGS

1118234

FITNESS EQUIPMENT: COMMUNITY OUTDOOR GYM ( KEEP 

FIT & GET FITTED) Old Kent Road North CGS

1118316 St James Road SE16 - cycle parking Old Kent Road North CGS or Highways

1118329 Bermondsey Joy-Slide Project - a joy-slide for the 21st century North Bermondsey CGS

1118354

Bermondsey ASCO TRA Bike  Astley House 10 Bike lockers, 

Brodie House 10 Bike lockers Mawbey & Lanark House 10 Bike 

lockers Unity Court 10 Bike lockers & each on CGS houses in the 

estate Old Kent Road North CGS

1118376 Speed ramps For Mawbey & Astley House Old Kent Road North CGS

1118478 Hawkstone TRA coach Rotherhithe CGS

200248 Re-tarmacking car park & resurfacing pavement in the estate North Bermondsey CGS

1118752

Long Term resurfacing of road and parking areas, with speed 

bump added at entrance North Bermondsey CGS

1118899 Safety lighting for George Row SE16 North Bermondsey CGS

1118914 Security mirrors on Dickens Estate North Bermondsey CGS

1119073 Avondale Towers biodiversity planting Old Kent Road North CGS

1119131 Security door at Morriss House North Bermondsey CGS

1119137 A blue plaque in memory of King Edward Frederick Muteesa II Rotherhithe CGS

1119144 Community Picnic Spot on Greenland Dock Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1119162 Flowers on Stevenson Crescent Estate South Bermondsey CGS

1119149 Repainting of the Bascule Bridge in Surrey Quays Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1119152 Street Lighting on Cunard Walk Surrey Docks CGS

1119154 Repainting of Bollards on Greenland Dock Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1119165 Bermondsey Community Kitchen South Bermondsey CGS

1119171 Bermondsey Community Kitchen Old Kent Road North CGS

1119192 Fencing off Osprey estate electrical cupboard entranceways Rotherhithe CGS

1119198 Stompie Garden London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

11



Reference Proposal Name Ward Programme

1119226 Hawkstone Road Open Space Rotherhithe CGS

1119261 Security door for Nickleby House Se164uw North Bermondsey CGS

1119269 A200 Rotherhithe Old Road Planting Rotherhithe CGS or Highways

1119271 Greenland Quay Edibles Planters Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1119282 Extra security lighting for Dickens estate North Bermondsey CGS

1119289 Bermondsey Village Hall Bi Fold Doors London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1119335 Dropped curb for pedestrian cut-through North Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1119342 Rotherhithe Old Road & Canute Gardens Planters Rotherhithe CGS

1119348 Rotherhithe Street Footpath: Completing the Paving Rotherhithe CGS or Highways

1119361 Westfield House Planters Rotherhithe CGS

1119373 Mayflower planters and community garden Rotherhithe CGS

1119376 Little Mayflower at Neptune Street Park Rotherhithe CGS

1119379 Southwark Park Picnic Tables Rotherhithe CGS

1119582 Where there's Muck there's Growth! Surrey Docks CGS

1119809 Local Authority CGS SuDS Retrofit. South Bermondsey CGS

1120029 Southwark Park All Weather Pitch Rotherhithe CGS

1120044 St Johns Estate playground improvements London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

1120068 Southwark Park Lake Interpretation Boards Rotherhithe CGS

1120168 Greenland Quay Tree Hugging Herb Planters Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1120175 Historic Yard Public Realm Transformation London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1120183 Beatson Walk underpass renovation. Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1120195 Greenland Quay Rainwater Harvester Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

1120203

Renovation of Nelson Walk underpass, Nelson Walk playground, 

and Pearson Park playground. Surrey Docks CGS

200249 A zebra crossing on St James Rd near Blue Anchor Lane North Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1120400 West Bermondsey cycle parking London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS or Highways

1120405 Poo-Free Bermondsey Spa Gardens South Bermondsey CGS

1120448 Community Hub in Guy Street Park London Bridge & West Bermondsey CGS

200234

Reducing (ongoing) Greenland Passage Riverside Public 

Nuisances Surrey Docks CGS or Highways

200236 Cycle Parking on Culloden Close Old Kent Road North CGS

200243 Community HubHop - Hub of Possibility, Patterson Park South Bermondsey CGS

1121517 Green Screen at Peter Hills School - SE16 5ED Surrey Docks CGS

200246 Bring colour to residential area South Bermondsey CGS or Highways

200262 London Bridge and West Berm hanging baskets London Bridge & West Bermondsey

12



 

Item No. 
8.

Classification:
Open

Date:
13 February 2019

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community Council

Report title: Camberwell Community Council Highways Capital
Investment 2019-2020

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Camberwell Green, Champion Hill, St Giles 

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the Camberwell Community Council approve the allocation of funds for 
the 2019-20 Community Council Highways Capital Investment programmes in 
Camberwell Community Council area from the list of proposals set out in 
Appendices 1 and 2.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. The council’s non-principal road investment programme prioritises works on 
non-principal roads on a borough-wide basis and this investment forms the 
largest part of the annual investment programme.

3. Community councils are allocated a devolved fund of £800,000 each year from 
the total annual programme to spend on their priorities for highway renewal 
and maintenance that may not be prioritised as part of the borough-wide 
programme.

4. The financial provision for each community council is pro-rata by ward, as 
published in the Highways Capital Investment Programme 2014-15 report. 

  
5. Commencing in 2017-18, the scope of the fund has been widened to permit 

the full range of minor traffic and highway capital schemes rather than solely 
like-for-like repair and replacement.  Examples of the types of works which can 
now be funded include:

 Footway and carriageway resurfacing;
 Traffic calming;
 Localised repairs;
 Accessibility improvements;
 Footway buildouts;
 Cycle hangars.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

6. Camberwell Community Council has been allocated £101,587 highway 
improvement works of its choice.

7. This amounts to £25,396 for Champion Hill, Camberwell Green and St Giles 
Wards have an allocation of £38,095.

13
Agenda Item 8



 

8. This can be spent on any non-principal road in the area. 

9. Proposals on private land or housing estates, ideas which are contrary to 
council policy, or are outside the control of the council, are not eligible – for 
example the removal of traffic calming measures without suitable 
replacements, speed cameras or traffic speed indicators.

Policy implications

10. The Community Council Highways Capital Investment programme is part of the 
investment programme set out in the Highway Infrastructure Asset 
Management Plan (HIAMP).

Community impact statement

11. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils 
take decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and 
community safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and 
strategies that affect the area.

12. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse 
local communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. 

13. In fulfilling the above objectives of community councils to bring together and 
involve Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the 
council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct;

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristics and those who do not share it;

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it.

14. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

15. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need to:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic;

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic;

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under- 
represented.

16. This year, ideas for the Community Council Highways Capital Investment 
programme have been invited from the local community via the Cleaner 

14



 

Greener Safer programme’s simple project nomination form available in 
electronic and paper format.

Financial implications

17. The funding for the Community Council Highways Investment programme from 
2011 to 2021 was approved by the cabinet and is part of the council's overall 
capital programme as detailed in the Capital Programme 2011–2021 report 
dated 21 June 2011. 

18. A further £4m was approved by the cabinet on 25 September 2012 to be 
included in 2021-22 to allow for an extra year of investment in the non-principal 
roads network.

Resource implications

19. The delivery of the proposed works will be through the highways and 
professional services term contract and will be managed by the transport 
projects team in the highways division. All works will be subject to quality and 
financial review through the Highways division’s monitoring processes led by 
the Head of Highways.

20. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme. 

Sustainability implications 

21. All materials excavated from the highway are sent for recycling and footway 
sub-base and base course materials are incorporated into the recycling 
regimes of our highways and professional services term contractor.

22. Every attempt will be made to minimise noise and disruption during the course 
of the proposed works. Night and weekend working will only be used where 
site or network constraints require this approach. However, this will only be as 
a last resort and following full consultation with the noise team.

Consultation

23. Where appropriate, stakeholder consultation will take place prior, during and 
on completion of works.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

24. The Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) gives the Leader the power to 
delegate any executive function to an area committee. The allocation of the 
CGS capital fund is an executive function. These works can be carried out in 
accordance with various executive statutory powers, including in this instance 
the Highways Act 1980 and the Localism Act 2011 section 1 (general power of 
competence). 

25. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act. 
The terms of the delegation relating to the CGS fund are set out in part 3H of 

15



 

the council’s constitution. Paragraph 14, Part 3H of the constitution enables 
community councils to approve “To approve the allocation of neighbourhood 
funds, cleaner, greener, safer and devolved highway capital schemes of a local 
nature using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet.”

26. This report is recommending that the community council approve the allocation 
of funds for the 2019-20 Highways Capital Investment Programme, which is in 
accordance with this delegation. 

27. Community councils further have powers under paragraph 16, Part 3H of the 
constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes.

28. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to 
the public sector equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
The report author has indicated how those duties need to be considered in the 
community impact statement referred to above. 

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance (CAP18/056) 

29. This report seeks the approval of the Camberwell Community Council for the 
allocation of funds (£101,587.30) for the 2019-20 Council Highways Capital 
Investment programme in the Camberwell Community Council area from the list 
of applications set out in Appendices 1 and 2.

30. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource/financial 
implications contained in this report.

31. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 
recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

16



 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Cabinet Report: Capital Programme 
2011–2021 – 21 June 2011

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

Alwyn Samuel
020 7525 2060

Link (please copy and paste into your browser):
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Progra
mme%202011-2021.pdf

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 2011

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

Alwyn Samuel
020 7525 2060

Link (please copy and paste into your browser):
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%
20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf

Quarter 1 Capital Reporting for 2012-
13 and Capital
Programme Refresh for 2012-13 – 
2021-22

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

Alwyn Samuel
020 7525 2060

Link (please copy and paste into your browser):
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Ca
pital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh
%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme Details

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

Alwyn Samuel
020 7525 2060

Link (please copy and paste into your browser):
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31730/Appendix%20F%20General%2
0fund%20capital%20programme%20details.pdf

Available on request:
Highway Infrastructure Asset 
Management Plan (HIAMP) Version 
1.0

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

Alwyn Samuel
020 7525 2060

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council Highways Capital Investment 

2019-20: Applications
Appendix 2 Officer Proposals

17

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31730/Appendix%20F%20General%20fund%20capital%20programme%20details.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31730/Appendix%20F%20General%20fund%20capital%20programme%20details.pdf


 

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Dale Foden, Head of Highways (Acting)
Report Author Alwyn Samuel, Principal Engineer

Version Final
Dated 31 January 2019

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included

Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 31 January 2019

18



C
a
m

b
e
rw

e
ll

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

s
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 2

0
1
9
-2

0
: 

A
p

p
li

c
a
ti

o
n

s

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

N
a
m

e
W

a
rd

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
1
1
2
0
0
0
6

G
ro

v
e
 l
a
n
e
 a

n
d
 S

to
ri
e
s
 R

o
a
d
 C

y
c
le

 h
a
n
g

e
rs

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
 H

ill
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

1
0
9
6
7
3
9

L
o
v
e
 W

a
lk

 b
ic

y
c
le

 H
a
n
g

e
r

S
t 

G
ile

s
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

1
1
1
9
1
4
3

G
ra

c
e
s
 M

e
w

s
 F

o
o
tw

a
y
 w

id
e
n
in

g
S

t 
G

ile
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

1
1
1
9
1
8
6

G
ra

c
e
s
 M

e
w

s
 C

a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y
 R

e
s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
S

t 
G

ile
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

1
1
2
0
2
5
9

S
t 

G
ile

s
 R

o
a
d
 c

y
c
le

 h
a
n
g

e
r

S
t 

G
ile

s
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

1
1
2
0
5
2
9

 E
a
s
ie

r 
c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n
 C

a
m

b
e
rw

e
ll

S
t 

G
ile

s
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

1
1
2
0
4
3
0

S
to

ri
e
s
 R

o
a
d
 c

y
c
le

 f
ri
e
n
d
ly

 d
ro

p
p
e
d
 k

e
rb

 &
 G

ro
v
e
 L

a
n
e
 

g
a
p
 i
n
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
re

s
e
rv

e
S

t 
G

ile
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

APPENDIX 119



 C
a
m

b
e
rw

e
ll

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

s
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 C

a
p

it
a
l 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 2

0
1
9
-2

0
: 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

N
a
m

e
W

a
rd

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

1
N

a
ir
n
e
 G

ro
v
e
-C

a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y
 R

e
a
s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
C

a
m

b
e
rw

e
ll

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

2
V

ic
a
ra

g
e
 G

ro
v
e
-C

a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y
 R

e
a
s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
S

t 
G

ile
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

3
B

e
n
h
ill

 R
o
a
d
-C

a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y
 R

e
a
s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
S

t 
G

ile
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

APPENDIX 2 20



Item No. 
9.

Classification:
Open

Date:
13 February 2019

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community Council

Report title: Allocation of Neighbourhoods Fund 2019-20 

Ward(s) or groups affected: Camberwell Green, Champion Hill, St Giles

From: Director of Communities

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the Camberwell Community Council allocate a total of £81,529 of the 
Neighbourhoods Fund 2019-20 from the list of applications outlined in Appendix 
1. This amount consists of two elements, namely £80,000 available for 2019-20 
and £1,529 of unallocated funding carried forward from the previous year’s 
programme.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2. The neighbourhoods fund was introduced in 2015 by merging two former revenue 
programmes known as cleaner, greener, safer revenue (CGS) and community 
council fund (CCF). The cabinet member for communities, employment and 
business authorised the amalgamation the CGS revenue fund and community 
council fund, into a single funding programme to create a new Neighbourhoods 
Fund for the 2015-16 round and onwards. This decision was taken on 12 
December 2014.

3. The neighbourhoods fund has a borough-wide funding budget of £630,000 with 
an allocation of £10,000 per councillor for each ward. This is subject to annual 
budget setting process.

4. The purpose of introducing the neighbourhoods fund was to give community 
councils decision making powers over significant amounts of revenue funding, 
that they could allocate to meet locally determined priorities. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

5. Each ward will have £20,000 - £30,000 of revenue grants to allocate. It is 
proposed that any unallocated funds are to be carried forward from the previous 
round (year) and added to the financial year commencing 1 April 2019. 

6. The community councils will use the criteria set out below for the allocation of this 
funding. 

a. Creating opportunities for people from different backgrounds to get on well 
together; (e.g. community cohesion) 

b. Establishing projects which treat each other with respect and consideration 
(e.g. being a good neighbour, inter-generational contacts) 

c. Encouraging residents to be responsible for their own neighbourhood (e.g. 
community clean-ups; volunteering initiatives)

d. Specific measures to enhance a neighbourhood’s environment (e.g. 
increased cleaning).

21
Agenda Item 9



7. A community council may choose to allocate some of their neighbourhoods fund 
resources to their cleaner greener safer capital allocations.

8. Subject to the availability of resources, the neighbourhoods fund may be used to 
‘buy’ services from the council.

9. As with any executive decision taken by community councils this is subject to the 
council’s existing scrutiny arrangements.

 
Community impact statement

10. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take 
decisions on local matters including environmental improvements and community 
safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that 
affect the area. 

11. An explicit objective within community council is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared mutual interest. 

12. The allocation of the 2019-20 Camberwell neighbourhoods fund will in the main, 
affect the people living in the Camberwell community council area. However, in 
making the area a better place to live and improving life chances for local people, 
Camberwell neighbourhoods fund activities will have an impact on the whole of 
Southwark.

13. The neighbourhoods fund is an important tool in achieving community 
participation and cohesion.

14. In fulfilling the above objectives that community councils have of bringing together 
and involving Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also 
been given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the 
council to have due regard when taking decisions to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it 

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic and 
those that do not share it.

15. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. In this process there 
are no issues that contravene the Equality Act 2010.

16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

 Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic.

 Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic.

22



 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic participate 
in public life or any other activity in which they are under-represented.

 Due consideration was given to equalities impact assessment during the 
design of this awards process and no adverse impact was evident.

Resource implications

17. There are no resource implications.

Consultation

18. The neighbourhoods fund projects may require consultation with stakeholders, 
including the project applicant, local residents and tenants and residents 
associations where applicable.

Financial implications 

19. The Camberwell neighbourhoods fund has been allocated a total of £80,000 for 
2019-20. In addition to this, funds totaling £1,529 remain unallocated from 
previous years’ allocations and thus also available to allocate. 

20. It is recommended that community councils set aside some of the unallocated 
funds from previous years in order to prevent an over allocation of funds, as well 
as act as a contingency from which urgent or incidental requests can be funded 
throughout the year. It must also be noted that the unallocated figures reported in 
the previous paragraph represent current best estimates as the 2019-20 funding 
round is only finally over on 31 March 2019.

21. Projects that are unlikely to be completed within the year will be reported to the 
community council and available funding may be allocated to other projects or 
carried over to the following financial year.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

22. The Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) gives the Leader the power to 
delegate any executive function to an area committee. The allocation of the 
neighbourhood fund is an executive function. Payments from the fund can be 
made in accordance with the powers in the Localism Act 2011 section 1 (the 
general power of competence for councils to do anything that individuals 
generally may do). 

23. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act. 

24. The terms of the delegation relating to the neighbourhood fund are set out in part 
3H of the council’s constitution. Paragraph 14, Part 3H of the constitution enables 
community councils to approve “the allocation of neighbourhood funds, £81,529 
using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet.”

25. This report is recommending that the community council approve the allocation of 
monies from the Neighbourhoods Fund 2019-20 as specified at Appendix 1. 

26. In allocating funding under the neighbourhoods fund community councils must 
have regard to the council’s equality duties set out in section 149 of the Equality 
Act 2010. The report author has indicated how those duties have been 

23



considered in the body of the report at paragraphs 10-16 of the report.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance (FIN1092 – JB)

27. The 2019-20 budget allocation for the neighbourhoods fund is to be agreed by 
council assembly as part of the budget setting process. The report notes the 
allocation is £10,000 per councillor by ward and thus £80,000 would be awarded 
to Camberwell community council. The report allocates a further £1,529 from the 
2018-19 allocation, this being the current estimate of the funds available at year 
end.

28. Paragraph 20 notes the need to maintain a contingency element from the funding 
available for urgent or incidental requests. This is a prudent measure to assist in 
the effective running of the neighbourhoods fund.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Neighbourhoods Fund Report 
IDM

Housing and Modernisation 
160 Tooley Street,
London SE1 2QH

Forid Ahmed
0207 525 5540

Neighbourhoods Fund 2019-20 
Awards

Housing and Modernisation
160 Tooley Street,
London SE1 2QH

Grace Semakula
0207 525 4928

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council Neighbourhoods Fund Applications 

2019-20

24



AUDIT TRAIL 

Lead Officer Forid Ahmed, Community Councils Team Leader
Report Author Grace Semakula, Community Council Officer

Version Final 
Dated 25 January 2019

Key Decision Yes
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance

Yes Yes

Strategic Director of Housing and 
Modernisation

No No

Cabinet member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 25 January 2019

25



Summary of applications – Camberwell Green Ward 

Ref: Name of group: Name of project / activity: Funding 
requested 
[£]: 

Provision
al Award 
[£]: 

1099729 Grosvenor Estate 
TRA 

Summer Street Party 2019 £1,000  

1109249 Castlemead T&RA Castlemead Pensioner & Infirm 
Christmas Dinner 2019 

£1,000  

1110362 Camberwell 
Salvation Army 

The Summer Munch £5,050  

1110852 Bethwin Road 
Playground 

Family Festive Fun £4,000  

1111846 Walworth Golden 
Oldies 

Seniors Inclusion Programme £4,860  

1112476 My First 1000 Days Womens Social Inclusion Project £4,500  

1113470 Southwark Explorers 
Club 

Southwark Explorers Club £1,150  

1113726 The Welcome 
Singers 

The Welcome Singers £1,430  

1114374 Comber Grove 
Primary School 

Anti-Gang Workshops £6,000  

1116107 Millwall Community 
Trust 

Millwall Walking Sports Club £5,344  

1117206 Grosvenor Estate 
TRA 

Day trips during school holidays £1,460  

1118458 Kinetika Bloco Highshore Bloco £4,620  

1118864 Camberwell Fair Ltd Camberwell Fair 2019 £5,000  

1119041 The Posh Club The Posh Club £5,000  

1119249 Sport in the 
Crawford 
Community 

Camberwell  9 a side £4,995  

119283 Club Hero Ground-breaking Community Cuisine £2,698  

1119317 The Way Forward 
Youth Group 

The Way Forward Youth Group £4,360  

1119525 The Kaleidoscope 
Collective 

The Kaleidoscope Collective £4,951  

26



Summary of applications – Camberwell Green Ward 

Ref: Name of group: Name of project / activity: Funding 
requested 
[£]: 

Provision
al Award 
[£]: 

1119567 Southwark 
Pensioners Centre 

SPC Men`s Group £2,100  

1119674 Evelina Mansions & 
Leslie Prince Court 
T&RA 

Community Collective £3,245  

1119681 National Youth 
Theatre 

What Am I Worth? £14,630  

1119687 Camberwell Arts Art of the party: 25 years of The 
Camberwell Arts Festival 

£4,850  

1119441 Southwark LGBT 
Network 

Queer Southwark photography display 
and workshop 

£3,350  

 

 

  

27



Summary of applications – Champion Hill 

Ref: Name of group: Name of project / activity: Funding 
requested  
[£]: 

Provision
al Award 
[£]: 

1106012 St Faiths 
Summer 
Playscheme 

St Faiths Summer Playscheme £7,833.84  

1116905 Mother Goose 
Nursery Wildlife 
Garden 

Wildlife Garden Events £3,500  

1117507 Stepping Stones 
Learning & 
Leisure 

Cook & Eat 4,072  

1119390 Dog Kennel Hill 
School 

Recycled Art Workshops £16,400  

1119485 Southwark 
Pensioners 
Centre 

SPC Xmas Party £1,900  

1119617 Dog Kennel Hill 
Adventure 
Playground 

Dare 2 B U £5,250  

1120934 NTA Dulwich Venture Away From The City £4,270  

 

28



Summary of applications – St Giles Ward 

Ref: Name of group: Name of project / activity: Funding 
requested 
[£]: 

Provision
al Award 
[£]: 

116039 Link Age Southwark Gentle exercise group for 
older,isolated people 

£1,912,50  

1116680 D`Eynesford TMO  
community interest 
company 

Community DIY Workshop £5,120  

1117076 Maintaining Health 
Partners 

Holistic Heath for Men £4,932  

1117500 Phoenix Explorers Outreach to low income households £4,625  

1117840 Sceaux Gardens 
TRA 

Sceaux Gardens Community Cycle 
Hub 

£5,000  

1117876 AFC Camberwell Freedom to play £3,360  

1118358 Southwark Street 
Pastors 

Southwark Street Pastors £1,180  

1118474 23rd Camberwell 
Scout Group 

Scout Easter Expedition 2019 £2,000  

1119264 Central Southwark 
Community Hub 

Holiday Activity Club £5,650  

1119312 Lettsom Move 
Forward TRA 

Project Flourish £5,490  

1119380 Central Southwark 
Community Hub 

Back 2 Work £8,780  

119456 Theatre Peckham Future Arts Professionals £5,000  

1119517 South London 
Gallery 

Sunday Spot £5,000  

119534 Capoeira Angola 
Community 

Capoeira Angola Community £1,800  

1119615 SE5 Forum for 
Camberwell 

 

Know Your Camberwell £5,000  

1119633 Camberwell Choir 
School 

CCS Juniors £3,166  

1119668 Lettsom TRA Buzzy Bees £5,015  

29



Summary of applications – St Giles Ward 

Ref: Name of group: Name of project / activity: Funding 
requested 
[£]: 

Provision
al Award 
[£]: 

1119671 The Janice Smith 
Foundation 

Homework £6,700  

1119707 From That To This Skills For Life £6,300  

1119745 Hidaya Womens 
Association 

 

English Classes £5,000  

1120566 The Bower Film Festival in Brunswick Park £2,440 He Bower 

 

30



 
CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018-19
NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team all amendments/queries to

Tim Murtagh Tel: 020 7525 7187

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

To all Members of the Community 
Council
                                               
Councillor Radha Burgess 
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John OBE

Electronic version (no hard copy)
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Chair)
Councillor Jason Ochere (Vice-Chair)                                          
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Kieron Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield

Officers
Tim Murtagh
Constitutional Officer Floor 2 Hub 2, 160 
Tooley Street

Grace Semakula, CCDO,
Floor 5 Hub 3, 160 Tooley Street

1
1
1

5

1

Others
Elizabeth Olive, Audit Commission
160 Tooley St.

Total:

Dated:  4 February  2019

1

10


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	7 Cleaner Greener Safer 2019-20: Capital Funding Allocation
	Appendix: Camberwell Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer Capital programme 2019-20: Applications

	8 Camberwell Community Council Highways Capital Investment 2019-2020
	CCC appendix 1
	CCC appendix 2

	9 Allocation of Neighbourhoods Fund 2019-20
	Appendix 1: Camberwell Community Council Neighbourhoods Fund Applications 2019-20
	NsF Summary of application 2019 for pack.docxCamberwell Green
	NsF Summary of application 2019 for pack.docx Champion Hill
	NsF Summary of application 2019 for pack.docx St Giles


	 



